

1 **Bylaws of the Waynesboro Republican Committee**
2
3
4

5 **Article 1 – Name**
6

7 The name of the organization shall be the Waynesboro Republican Committee,
8 hereafter called the Committee.
9

10 **Article 2 – Organization**
11

12 The Committee is organized and governed by the Plan of Organization of
13 the Republican Party of Virginia, called the State Party Plan, and Robert’s Rules
14 of Order. No action of the Committee or these bylaws may conflict with the State
15 Party Plan, as amended from time to time, and to the extent that there shall be a
16 conflict, the provisions of the State Party Plan, then these bylaws, and then
17 Robert’s Rules of Order shall prevail.
18

19 **Article 3 – Purpose of the Committee**
20

21 The purpose of the Committee is to 1) affirm, promote and advance the Platform of
22 the Republican Party, as drafted every four years at the Republican National
23 Convention, 2) recruit and elect qualified candidates for public office, 3) educate
24 voters on issues of importance and 4) assist and encourage elected officials to
25 faithfully execute their responsibilities.
26

27 **Article 4 – Membership**
28

29 Section A – General Qualifications
30

31 All legal and qualified voters, under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia,
32 regardless of race, religion, color, national origin, or sex, who reside in the City of
33 Waynesboro, and who are in accord with the principles of the Republican Party as
34 expressed in the Platform of the National Republican Party and the Virginia
35 Republican Creed, may participate as members of the Waynesboro Republican
36 Committee. Specific qualifications relating to Mass Meetings, Canvasses,
37 Conventions, Primaries or Committee membership are described in detail in other
38 sections of these bylaws.
39

40 Section B – Dues
41

42 Each member of the committee may be required to pay reasonable annual dues,
43 the amount of which shall be determined by majority vote of those members who
44 are present and voting at a duly called meeting.

45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88

Section C – Composition

The Committee shall consist of:

- 1) A Chairman,
- 2) Members,
- 3) Elected Public Official Members. All eligible publicly elected Republican officials shall be Members of the Committee ex-officio. Elected Public Officials are not eligible to vote as Members of the Committee.
- 4) A person may have only one membership and one vote. Therefore, any person elected as Chairman shall vacate membership as a member. Elected public officials shall, upon election to office, vacate any other membership and become an Elected Public Official Member.
- 5) Persons who are employees or staff members of an elected public official or the Republican Party of Virginia shall not be eligible to be Members of the Committee.
- 6) Honorary Members, defined as those who may, or may not, reside in Waynesboro or may not be physically able to attend meetings. Honorary Members may fully participate in meetings, but shall not offer Motions or vote on Motions, and shall not be required to pay dues. (Paragraph 6 added as an Amendment on June 11, 2015)

Section D – Election

- 1) The Chairman and Committee Members shall be elected at the Mass Meeting, Canvass or Convention called for the purpose of electing delegates to the bi-annual District Convention in the 6th Congressional District and other business. They shall hold office for two years from the time of their election, or until successors are elected as above, unless sooner removed.
- 2) Committee Officers shall be elected at the duly called meeting of the Committee following the Mass Meeting.
- 3) The election of Officers, Members and/or Convention delegates by slate or grouping is expressly forbidden and shall not be permitted. All elections are of individuals only.

Section E – Removal

- 1) Any member shall automatically lose his or her status as a voting member of the Committee who:
 - a) Fails to attend in person three consecutive duly called meetings, or
 - b) Fails to pay annual dues by March 1st of each year.
 - c) The Secretary may notify, as an informational courtesy, in writing, any member of failure to comply with the above within 30 days of such failure.
- 2) The Chairman, any Officer of the Committee, or any Member of the Committee may be removed from office by a two-thirds vote of the total Committee

89 membership at a duly called meeting of the Committee, provided that such person
90 shall be given a thirty days notice, in writing, that such removal is sought. The
91 grounds upon which such removal is based shall be stated in writing and signed by
92 one-third of the Members of the Committee.

93

94 Section F – Vacancies

95

96 1) In the event of the death, resignation, removal or inability to act of the
97 Chairman, the officers shall call a special meeting of the Committee to be held
98 within thirty days, but no sooner than seven days of the call for the purpose of
99 electing a new Chairman to fill the unexpired term.

100 2) Members may be elected at any duly called meeting of the Committee, provided
101 that notice is given with the call for the meeting.

102 3) Officers may be elected to fill any vacancy at a regularly called meeting of the
103 Committee, provided that notice is given with the call for the meeting.

104

105 Section G – Duties

106

107 The Committee shall:

108

109 1) Determine whether candidates for local and constitutional public offices shall be
110 nominated by Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, Convention, or Primary,

111 2) Determine, with respect to Section D above, whether the Chairman shall be
112 elected by Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, Convention, or Primary,

113 3) Cause to be called all regular and special meetings, all Mass Meetings, Party
114 Canvasses and Conventions and cause all appropriate arrangements to be made.

115 For the above, the Committee shall specify the date, time, fees, if any, and whether
116 there shall be pre-filing. If there is to be pre-filing, the Committee shall determine
117 the requirements thereof. If a Convention, the Committee shall specify the basis of
118 representation.

119 4) Cooperate with the State Committee, the Sixth Congressional District
120 Committee, the 25th House of Delegates District Committee, and the 24th
121 Senatorial Legislative District Committee in conducting all election and fund-
122 raising activities.

123 5) Be solely responsible for the promulgation and maintenance of the Committee's
124 bylaws. No other persons or organizations may change or alter the Committee's
125 bylaws.

126

127 **Article 5 – Definitions**

128

129 1) State Party or Party means the Republican Party of Virginia.

130

131 2) State Party Plan means the Plan of Organization of the Republican Party of
132 Virginia.

133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175

3) State Central Committee means State Central Committee of the Republican Party of Virginia.

4) Election District means the city, precinct, or portions or combinations thereof, including cities and city wards as appropriate, which comprise the area defined by the law in which an election is to be held.

5) Congressional District means the election district, as defined in the State Party Plan, for a member of the House of Representatives of the United States Congress.

6) Annual Meeting means the first meeting held in the Spring quarter. The Annual Budget and the Political Plan may be approved at this meeting.

7) Legislative District means the election district, as defined by the State Party Plan, for the member of the House of Delegates or the State Senate of the Virginia General Assembly.

8) District Committee means the Republican Congressional District Committee for a Congressional District.

9) Legislative District Committee means the Republican District Committee for a State Senatorial District or a House of Delegates District as the context may require.

10) Committee means the Waynesboro Republican Committee.

11) Unit means County or City.

12) Unit Committee means County or City Committee.

13) Republican Party Voting Strength means a uniform ratio of the votes cast in a political subdivision for the Republican candidates for Governor and President to the total votes cast in the entire Election District, as defined in the State Party Plan, for the Republican candidates for Governor and President in the last proceeding Gubernatorial and Presidential elections. This ratio is used by higher level committees to determine Unit and other representation.

14) Quadrennial State Convention means the State Convention held in Presidential election years for the purpose of nominating electors-at-large to the Electoral College and electing delegates-at-large and alternates-at-large to the Quadrennial National Republican Convention.

- 176 15) Quadrennial District Convention means the District Convention held in
177 Presidential election years for the purpose of nominating an elector to the
178 Electoral College and electing Delegates and Alternates to the Quadrennial
179 National Republican Convention.
180
- 181 16) Biennial District Convention means the District Convention held in
182 Congressional election years and is the same as the Quadrennial District
183 Convention in Presidential years.
184
- 185 17) Official Committee means the State Central Committee, a District Committee,
186 a Legislative District Committee, or a Unit Committee.
187
- 188 18) Chairman or Chairmen shall not be construed to denote gender.
189
- 190 19) Ex-Officio means by virtue of holding an office and shall not be construed to
191 mean with or without vote.
192
- 193 20) Mass Meeting is as defined in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order,
194 subject to the provisions of the State Party Plan and these bylaws.
195
- 196 21) Party Canvass is a method of electing chairmen, officers, members, delegates
197 to Conventions, or Party nominees which shall include pre-filing candidacies, then
198 secret balloting at convenient polling places and hours after proper notice.
199
- 200 22) Convention is as defined in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order,
201 subject to the provisions of the State Party Plan.
202
- 203 23) Primary is as defined in, and subject to, the election laws of the
204 Commonwealth of Virginia.
205
- 206 24) Party Members are all Chairmen, members of the Committee, delegates to
207 Conventions, and voters in Mass Meetings or Party Canvasses that are legally
208 qualified voters in the election district which they represent.
209
- 210 25) Voting Strength means the actual, or computed, number of votes cast for the
211 Republican candidate in the most recent gubernatorial election.
212
- 213 26) Full Vote means that the delegates present and voting at a Convention may
214 cast the full vote of the delegation proportionally weighted. Example: The
215 delegation has 12 votes and 11 delegates. There are 10 delegates voting, 7 yes and
216 3 no. The delegation vote is 8.4 yes and 3.6 no.
217
- 218 27) Non-Full Vote means that each delegate is only entitled to the vote for which
219 he is certified. Non-Full Vote votes are normally uniformly fractionalized for

220 certification. Example: The delegation has 12 votes and 11 delegates. Each
221 delegate has been certified for 1.09 votes. There are 10 delegates voting, 7 yes and
222 3 no. The delegation vote is 7.63 yes and 3.27 no.

223

224 **Article 6 – Officers**

225

226 Section A – Officers

227

228 1) The officers of the Committee shall be the Chairman, and the following officers
229 who shall be elected from the Committee membership for a term of two years, or
230 until a successor is elected. Election of these officers shall be at the duly called
231 meeting of the Committee following the Mass Meeting.

232 a) Vice Chairman

233 b) Treasurer

234 c) Secretary

235 2) The Committee may create or eliminate any office, other than Chairman, by
236 majority vote at a duly called meeting of the Committee.

237 3) Officers, excepting the Chairman, may be elected to fill any vacancy at any
238 called meeting of the Committee, provided that notice is given within the call for
239 the meeting.

240

241 Section B – Vice Chairman

242

243 1) The election of a Vice Chairman shall be at the duly called meeting of the
244 Committee following the Mass Meeting.

245 2) The Vice Chairman shall be elected by Committee members, and shall hold
246 office for two years from the time of election, until a successor is elected, or unless
247 removed.

248 3) In the event of removal, resignation, death, removal of residence from within
249 Waynesboro, or any other cause for vacancy in a Vice Chairman position, the
250 Chairman may appoint an Acting Vice Chairman to fill such vacancy, provided
251 that such appointee is already a duly elected member of the Committee until the
252 members of the Committee meet to elect a successor to fill the unexpired portion of
253 the term. This election shall be held at a Committee meeting at which notice of
254 such election is included in the call.

255

256 Section C – Duties of Officers

257

258 1) The Chairman shall:

259

260 a) Be responsible for the execution and implementation of the programs
261 and policies of the Committee, which shall be in accordance with Article
262 3 – The Purpose of the Committee;

- 263 b) Call regular and special meetings of the Committee and preside over
264 them;
265 c) Call Mass Meetings or Conventions as the Committee may decide and
266 preside over them until a temporary organization is effected;
267 d) Call Party Canvasses or initiate Primaries as the Committee may decide;
268 e) Represent the Committee on the Sixth District Committee;
269 f) Convene the Committee no less than once in each three month period,
270 normally monthly, and more frequently when the needs of the
271 Committee require;
272 g) Appoint two qualified persons to make an annual audit of the books and
273 financial records of the Treasurer at the end of each fiscal/budget year,
274 these persons to report the results of their audit in writing to the
275 Committee;
276 h) Represent the Committee on the Legislative District Committees, and
277 appoint representatives to other Legislative Committees as may be
278 appropriate.

279

280 2) The Vice Chairman shall:

281

- 282 a) Oversee programs and activities of the Committee as directed by the
283 Committee.
284 b) Act as temporary Chairman in the event of an inability of the Chairman to
285 serve, until that condition is corrected or until a new Chairman is elected,
286 as described above.

287

288 3) The Secretary shall:

289

- 290 a) Take and keep all minutes of the Committee;
291 b) Obtain and keep all minutes and records of called Mass Meetings, Party
292 Canvasses, Conventions and Primaries;
293 c) The Secretary shall have available at all meetings current copies of the
294 State Party Plan, these bylaws and a current edition of Robert's Rules of
295 Order;
296 d) The Secretary shall keep and maintain accurate lists of the membership,
297 officers, Chairman and Vice Chairmen and the composition of all
298 committees;
299 e) The Secretary shall keep and maintain an accurate list of the membership's
300 attendance, and shall inform the Chairman and the member when a
301 member becomes delinquent as noted above;
302 f) The Secretary shall call a special meeting of the Committee within thirty
303 days, in the event of the Chairman's inability to serve, to elect a new
304 Chairman to fill the unexpired term.
305 g) The Secretary shall deliver all minutes, lists, records and copies to any
306 successor within ten days;

- 307 h) The Secretary will retain all minutes, lists and records for a period of three
308 years.
309
- 310 4) The Treasurer shall:
311
- 312 a) Be responsible for the safe keeping and disbursement of all Committee
313 Funds;
 - 314 b) He shall have the authority and responsibility to audit and report to the
315 Committee on all accounts of the Committee;
 - 316 c) The Treasurer shall be authorized to disburse funds under the following
317 conditions:
 - 318 d) In accordance with an annual budget approved by the Committee at a
319 regularly called meeting, provided adequate funds are available to meet any
320 priority obligations as established by such budget;
 - 321 e) By written authority of the Chairman, provided the amount does not exceed
322 \$100.00 and a source of funds to meet other obligations is clearly available;
 - 323 f) The Chairman and the Treasurer are empowered to open a bank account in
324 the name of the Waynesboro Republican Committee and make deposits and
325 withdrawals from that account;
 - 326 g) The Treasurer shall present a report at each Committee meeting covering
327 the period since the proceeding meeting;
 - 328 h) The Treasurer shall present an annual report to the Committee at the end
329 of the fiscal/budget year.
 - 330 i) The Treasurer's books shall be audited at the end of the fiscal/budget year
331 by two persons appointed by the Chairman. The report of such audit shall
332 be presented to the Committee in writing and a copy shall be retained by
333 the Treasurer;
 - 334 j) The Treasurer shall keep proper records which provide an audit trail. Such
335 records shall be open to inspection by any Committee member at reasonable
336 times and upon reasonable notice;
 - 337 k) The Treasurer shall insure that all transactions are in accordance with
338 applicable law, supported by records, and that required reports are made;
 - 339 l) The Treasurer shall deliver all books and records to any successor within
340 ten days of succession;
 - 341 m) All books and records shall be retained for seven years;
 - 342 n) No person shall obligate the Committee without proper authority and only
343 after ascertaining that the Treasurer is authorized to make the
344 corresponding disbursement.

345
346 **Article 7 – Meetings**

347
348 Section A – General

349

350 The Committee shall meet at least once in each three month period, but normally
351 monthly. The Committee may set the meeting schedule by majority vote at a duly
352 called meeting, so long as a meeting is held once in each three month period. All
353 meetings shall be open to the public.

354

355 Section B – Notice

356

357 Meetings of the Committee shall be held upon at least seven days notice, with an
358 agenda, to the membership as recorded on the official membership list kept by the
359 Secretary.

360

361 Section C – Voting by Ballot

362

363 At any election when there is more than one candidate, the vote shall be by paper
364 ballot accomplished by roll call of the membership with each member casting his
365 or her ballot when their name is called. The Secretary shall tally the ballots. Upon
366 request, the ballots shall be made available to Committee members for inspection
367 following the election.

368

369 Section D – Quorum

370

371 Twenty percent of the current membership of the Committee who are eligible to
372 vote shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

373

374 **Article 8 – Executive Committee**

375

376 Section A – Establishing an Executive Committee

377

378 The membership of the Committee may create or eliminate an Executive
379 Committee by majority vote at a duly called meeting of the Committee.

380

381 Section B – Purpose

382

383 The Executive Committee shall formulate such plans, policies and measures as
384 will accomplish the objectives of the Committee. It shall recommend to the
385 Committee actions that should be undertaken. At all times, recommendations of
386 the Executive Committee shall conform to the purposes of the Committee, as
387 stated in Article 3.

388

389 Section C – Membership

390

391 The Executive Committee shall consist of:

392

393 The Chairman

394 The Vice Chairman

395 The Secretary

396 The Treasurer

397

398 Section D – Quorum

399

400 All members of the Executive Committee shall be present to constitute a quorum
401 for the transaction of business.

402

403 Section E – Meetings

404

405 a) Meetings of the Executive Committee shall be duly called by the Chairman;

406 b) The Chairman shall preside over the Executive Committee;

407 c) The Chairman shall report to the membership the content and results of
408 each meeting of the Executive Committee at the next duly called meeting of
409 the Committee.

410

411 **Article 9 – Mass Meetings**

412

413 Section A – General

414

415 1) **Nominating Candidates:** A Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, Convention or
416 Primary shall be held in each year, in which there is to be an election for local
417 constitutional offices, for the purpose of nominating candidates for the applicable
418 public offices, and for other proper purposes.

419

420 2) **Electing Convention Delegates:** In years in which a State, District, or
421 Legislative District Convention is called, a Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, or
422 Convention shall be held for the purpose of electing delegates to such conventions,
423 This Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, or Convention shall be the same as that for
424 nominating candidates if such is held.

425

426 3) **Electing a Chairman and Committee Members:** In Congressional election years,
427 a Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, or Convention shall be held for the purpose of
428 electing a Chairman and Committee Members. This Mass Meeting, Party Canvass,
429 or Convention shall be the same as that for nominating candidates or delegates if
430 such is held.

431

432 4) A Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, or Convention shall be governed by the Plan of
433 Organization of the Republican Party of Virginia, these bylaws, and Robert's Rules
434 of Order. Should there be a conflict, the provisions of the State Party Plan, then
435 these bylaws, and then Robert's Rules of Order shall prevail.

436

- 437 5) Representation in Committee Conventions shall be determined by the
438 Committee.
439
- 440 6) All legal and qualified voters, under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia,
441 regardless of race, religion, color, national origin, or sex, who reside in the City of
442 Waynesboro, who are in accord with the principles of the Republican Party as
443 expressed in the Platform of the National Republican Party and the Virginia
444 Republican Creed, and who affirm in open meeting, or if requested, orally or in
445 writing on an affidavit, their pledge to support all of its nominees for public office
446 in the ensuing election may participate as members of a Mass Meeting, Party
447 Canvass, or Convention.
448
- 449 7) The Credentials Committee of any Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, or Convention
450 shall be diligent in assuring the integrity of Republican participation at such
451 meeting. A Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, or Convention is held to select
452 Republican Candidates. Accordingly, those who are not Republicans shall not
453 participate in the process.
454
- 455 8) No member of a Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, or Convention shall vote for
456 delegates to a Convention representing a district of which he is not a resident.
457
- 458 9) Every Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, or Convention shall be held in a building
459 suitable for the meeting and shall be open to the public. If after a call for a Mass
460 Meeting, Party Canvass, or Convention, it shall be determined that the size of the
461 building designated in the call shall be inadequate relative to the anticipated
462 attendance or the building shall not be available, the location may be changed by
463 the Chairman to a more adequate building, provided that written notice of the new
464 location be posted at the location originally selected for the meeting, and further
465 provided that those attending are allowed sufficient time to be present at the
466 alternate location and to participate in the meeting.
467
- 468 10) The election of Officers, Members and/or Convention delegates by slate or
469 grouping is expressly forbidden and shall not be permitted at any Mass Meeting,
470 Party Canvass, or Convention. All elections are of individuals only.
471
- 472 11) Those who seek to participate in a Mass Meeting, Party Canvass, or
473 Convention shall be required to present valid photo identification to the
474 Credentials Committee at the time of registration. Such requirement may be
475 included in the Call for a Mass Meeting.

476
477 Section B – Rules
478

- 479 1) All Mass Meetings, Party Canvasses, Conventions or Primaries shall be
480 governed by and conducted in accordance with following, giving preference as

481 listed: the State Party Plan, these bylaws and the current edition of Robert's Rules
482 of Order.

483 2) The Committee shall approve the rules and order of business for the conduct of
484 any Mass Meeting or Committee Convention in advance of the meeting. Said rules
485 and order of business shall be submitted to the Rules Committee of such Mass
486 Meeting or Convention for its consideration and report to the Mass Meeting or
487 Convention.

488 3) The Committee shall approve the rules for the conduct of a Party Canvass. Such
489 rules shall be subject to the State Party Plan.

490 4) When the Committee has approved a Primary for nominating candidates to
491 public Offices, the State Central Committee shall be requested to establish,
492 consistent with State law, the necessary rules and regulations for the conduct of
493 such Primary and their assistance shall be utilized in every practical manner.

494 5) When a Mass Meeting or Convention has divided into sub-groups in order to
495 choose delegates to different election district conventions, each resulting sub-
496 division, by majority vote, may elect to adopt its own rules and shall otherwise be
497 ruled in accordance with paragraph 1) above.

498

499 Section C – Calls

500

501 1) All calls for Mass Meetings, Party Canvasses or Conventions shall be published
502 on the websites of the Committee, the Sixth District Committee and the RPV not
503 less than seven days prior to the Mass Meeting, Party Canvass or Convention.
504 Calls shall conform to the current requirements of the Sixth District Committee
505 and the RPV.

506

507 2) In order to be a requirement for any election by a Mass Meeting, Party Canvass,
508 or Convention, pre-filing shall be approved by the Committee, and the pre-filing
509 requirement included in the call. The call, including the pre-filing requirement,
510 must be published at least seven days prior to the pre-filing deadline. This pre-
511 filing deadline shall be thirty days prior to the event, if a Convention, and no later
512 than the day of the event, if a Mass Meeting or Party Canvass. This publication
513 requirement shall take precedence over, but is consistent with, the publication
514 requirement of 1) above. Each person desiring to pre-file must file a statement
515 prior to the deadline for pre-filing. The Committee or the Chairman may prescribe
516 the use of a particular form for the required statement. If a particular form is
517 prescribed, a copy shall be included in the call.

518

519 Section D – Vacancies

520

521 Should candidates or delegates who have been elected by a Mass Meeting, Party
522 Canvass, Convention, or Primary not be able to fulfill their duties, the Committee
523 may decide to fill such vacancy, although it is not required to do so. The
524 Committee could elect new candidates or delegates by majority vote at a special

525 meeting. Such meeting shall require at least twenty-four hours notice, and the
526 notice may be written or verbal.

527

528 Section E – Delegates

529

530 1) Delegates to a Convention of the 6th District or the Republican Party of Virginia
531 shall be certified according to the regulations of the Sixth Congressional District
532 Committee and the Republican Party of Virginia. The Committee shall conform to
533 those regulations.

534

535 Section F – Voting

536

537 1) The certification of delegates may state how the delegates shall vote, whether
538 those present voting Full Vote or Non-Full Vote. Any delegation from the
539 Committee shall always vote Full Vote.

540

541 2) No delegation shall vote under a unit rule at any convention.

542

543 3) No delegate shall be instructed or limited in their voting at any convention.

544

545 4) The delegates present in a delegation shall designate, by majority vote, which
546 alternate shall vote in the place of an absent delegate.

547

548 **Article 10 – Rules and Appeals**

549

550 All controversies or contests must be brought before the Committee at that
551 meeting, or they shall be moot. Decisions of the Committee, or Mass Meeting, are
552 final, except as provided in the State Party Plan.

553

554 **Article 11 – Amendments**

555

556 These bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of the membership of the
557 Committee at a duly called meeting, provided that a notice of intent and the text of
558 the proposed amendment shall have been provided to the members with the call of
559 the meeting. The Secretary shall provide the membership with a copy of passed
560 amendments.

561

562 **Article 12 – Certification of These Bylaws**

563

564 1) These bylaws cancel and supersede any and all prior Bylaws, plans or other
565 acts, and amendments thereto, for the government of the Waynesboro Republican
566 Committee.

567

568 2) Two copies of these bylaws shall be signed in blue ink by the Chairman, Vice
569 Chairman and Secretary. These two copies shall be designated the original and
570 official copies of the bylaws. In matters of substance affecting the Committee, only
571 an original and official copy of the bylaws shall be used.

572

573 3) One original and official copy of the bylaws is to be held by the Secretary and
574 one original and official copy of the bylaws shall be held by the Treasurer.

575

576 We, the undersigned, do swear or affirm that these bylaws were adopted by the
577 Waynesboro Republican Committee at its duly called meeting on:

578

579 _____

580

581

582 Chairman: _____ Date: _____

583

584

585

586 Vice Chairman: _____ Date: _____

587

588

589

590 Secretary: _____ Date: _____

591

592